HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
May 11, 2007
2:18 p. m

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Meyer called the House Finance Conmittee neeting to
order at 2:18:50 PM

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative Les Gara

Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative Mke Kelly
Representative Mary Nel son
Representative Bill Thomas, Jr.

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Richard Foster

ALSO PRESENT

Senator Bettye Davis; Thomas Oberneyer, Staff, Senator
Bettye Davis; Wilter Mjoros, Executive Director, Juneau
Youth Services; Janet Carke, Assistant Comm ssioner,
D vision of Finance and Managenent Services, Departnent of
Health and Social Services; WMarie Darlin, AARP; Suzanne
Cunni ngham Staff, Representative Myer

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

None
SUMVARY

CSSB 27(FIN) amfAn Act relating to eligibility requirenents
for medical assistance for certain children, pregnant
wonen, disabled persons, and persons in nedical or
intermediate care facilities; and providing for an
“effective date.”

HCS CSSB 27 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Conmittee with a
"do pass" recommendation and with zero fiscal note #5
by the Departnent of Corrections, and fiscal notes #6,
#7, and #8 by the Departnent of Health and Soci al
Servi ces.

2:18: 57 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 05/11/07 2:18 P. M



CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 27(FIN) am

"An Act relating to eligibility requirenents for
nmedi cal assistance for certain children, pregnant
wonen, disabled persons, and persons in nedical or
intermediate care facilities; and providing for an
effective date.”

SENATOR BETTYE DAVIS, sponsor, related that the bill had
been heard by the House Finance Commttee previously. The
bill would provide an opportunity to keep sonme kids on

Denali Kid Care and brings other on the program She urged
the commttee to support the bill.

THOVAS OBERMEYER, STAFF, SENATOR BETTYE DAVIS, expl ained
that Denali Kid Care programis a part of the State Children
Heal th I nsurance Program (SCH P) program which funds at a
rate of 70 percent federal noney and 30 percent state noney.
It supports children in all states. The Denali Kid Care
Program had about 7,600 children on the rolls as of the end
of 2006. Since the program was cut back in 2003, 3,000
children are no | onger served. Another 1,000 children wll
be dropped fromthe programif nothing is done.

The bill restores the Denali Kid Care programat 175 percent
of federal poverty level, the level that was set in 2003
after having been at 200 percent previously. Alaska is at
the I owest |evel of poverty percentage in the country, with
the exception of Mntana and North Dakota. He requested
support for the bill.

Senator Davis added that the funding request is at 175

percent of poverty |evel. Co-Chair Meyer asked how that
percent age was deci ded. Senator Davis reported that the
original bill was at 200 percent and the anobunt was
decreased in Senate Finance. Co-Chair Meyer asked if

permanent funds were included when determning eligibility.
Senator Davis didn't know.

2:25: 09 PM

M. Ovberneyer nentioned that the 175 rate is a percentage of
the federal poverty guidelines. He enphasized that those
peopl e are seriously financially strapped.

Representative Gara related that increasing from 150 percent
to 175 percent adds about 1,000 to 1,300 kids to the health
insurance rolls at a cost of about $600, 000. 200 percent
woul d have added 2,000 - 2,500 kids to the rolls at a cost
of $1.2 million in state noney because of the federal match.
The state’s cost is $600 per child. Only two states insure
at a lower |evel than Al aska. He argued for 200 percent.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 05/11/07 2:18 P. M



2:27:45 PM

WALTER MAJOROS, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, JUNEAU YOUTH SERVI CES,
testified in strong support of SB 27. He related the inpact
of Denali Kid Care on children’s behavioral health services,
which funds the majority of these services. He di scussed
the Bring the Kids Hone |Initiative. He spoke of the
problems with |essening support for health services due to
kids not qualifying for Denali Kid Care. Several states are
taking steps to expand health care coverage for Kkids. He
urged the committee to pass the anbunt at over 175 percent.

Representative Gara pointed out that if federal eligibility
is lost due to falling below 150 percent, it would cost the
state about $3 nmillion.

2:32: 03 PM

MARI E DARLIN, AARP, testified in support of SB 27. She
referred to a letter to the commttee nenbers (copy on
file.) She ternmed AARP the |argest group of grandparents
in favor of Denali Kid Care. Her organization sees Denal
Kid Care as an inportant building block of the state's
health care program She nentioned the nunmber of kids who
are no longer qualifying for the program She termed the
bill preventive health care that saves noney |ater on.
Behavi oral health needs al so ought to be consi dered.

2:35: 25 PM

Co- Chair Meyer turned attention to the fiscal notes.

JANET CLARKE, ASSISTANT COW SSI ONER, DI VI SION OF FI NANCE
AND MANAGEMENT SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL
SERVI CES, drew attention to the three fiscal notes by the

depart nent. She referred to a chart (copy on file) which
showed the total inpact of the costs of Denali Kid Care at
175 percent, as well as the nunber of kids served. In 2008

the bill would add 1,277 kids and 218 pregnant wonen to the
program for an annual Medicaid program cost of $2,651.3
mllion and an annual administrative cost of $40.2 mllion

The total cost would be $2,691.5 mllion, with the federa

share of $1,907.4 mllion, and the general fund share of
$783.5 thousand. Sonme of the children who were dropped
woul d be eligible for the program again.

Representative Gara asked if the general fund share would be
$783.5 thousand at 175 percent, and woul d be double that at
200 percent. Ms. Clarke said that is correct — it would
doubl e.

Co-Chair Meyer asked if the dollar anount requested for
Denali Kid Care is available in the budget. Ms. O arke

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 05/11/07 2:18 P. M



replied that these dollars are not in the budget and a
fiscal note woul d be needed.

Representative Gara pointed out the |oss of federal nonies
by not funding the program It would be cheaper for the
state to go to 175 percent, than to do not hing.

2:40: 18 PM

Representative Kelly asked how federal eligibility could be
mai ntai ned. He wondered if 150 percent is the goal anount.
Ms. Clarke said he was in the ball park.

Representative Gara announced that he and Senator
W el echowski have a proposal that would provide universa
health care for children and let famlies buy into the
programif they are above 175 percent of the federal poverty
| evel . He asked if the fiscal note would only be about $3
mllion under such a proposal. M. (O arke said she does not
have that information with her.

2:41:41 PM

Co- Chair Meyer MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent #1:

Page 1, lines 2-3:

Delete “, disabled persons, and persons in nedical or
internediate care facilities”

I nsert “and di sabl ed persons”

Co- Chair Chenault OBJECTED

SUZANNE CUNNI NGHAM STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE MEYER, expl ai ned
t hat Amendnent #1 was brought to the Co-chair’s attention by
| egislative | egal services. An amendnent was nmade in Senate
Fi nance that renoved a section pertaining to the percentage
of federal poverty guidelines and individuals in nedical or
intermedi ate care facilities. A title anendnent was needed
because of that. It does not involve a title change
resol ution because it is a technical change.

Representative Gara asked if the original bill extended care
to persons in nedical or internediate care facilities. M.
Cunni ngham said that was correct. Representative Gara asked
for nore information.

Ms. Clarke reported that the original bill covered persons
who were eligible at 300 percent of poverty level. The cost
of adding 106 of themwas $6.1 nillion. The Senate Finance
Conmi ttee changed that and kept it frozen in statute. She
explained that those individuals eventually qualify for
nur si ng hones.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 05/11/07 2:18 P. M



Representative CGara asked if the levels would fall every
year. M. Carke said they woul d.

Vice Chair Stoltze WTHDREW his objection. There being NO
OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

2:46: 31 PM

Representative Gara MOVED to ADOPT Anendnment #2:

Page 3, Line 26, follow ng “poverty”:
Del ete: “line”
| nsert: “guideline”

Page 4, Line 6, follow ng “poverty”:
Del ete: “line”
| nsert: “guideline”

Page 4, Line 29, follow ng “poverty”:
Del ete: “line”
| nsert: “guideline”

Li ne 25, follow ng “poverty”:

Del ete: “line”

| nsert: “guideline”
Represent ati ve Hawker OBJECTED.
Representative Gara MOVED to AVEND Amendnent #2 by omtting
the Page 4, Line 6 change. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

Representative Gara explained that the Denali Kid Care is

based on a percentage of the federal poverty guideline. He
t hought the wording “poverty line” was incorrect and should
be “poverty guidelines”. Representati ve Hawker comrented

that according to the federal Health and Human Services
Bulletin the correct wording is “poverty line” for Al aska.
He suggested conformng the bill to legislative drafting
suggestions. Vice Chair Stoltze concurred.

2:49: 32 PM

Senator Davis related that |legislative |egal suggested
leaving “line” in the bill.

Representative Gara W THDREW Anendnent #2.

Representative Gara asked about the guideline for Al aska.
Ms. Clarke said it is an Alaska statute and it is a drafting
choice not to say “in Al aska”.

Representative Gara asked about the federal schedule listing
for Alaska. M. Carke deferred to | egislative |egal.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 05/11/07 2:18 P. M



2:51:49 PM

Representative Kelly brought up that +the state 1is
approaching a deficit. He voiced concern about adding to
this entitlenment program He spoke against having a third
of Al askan kids in the program He didn’'t think the program
was having a positive effect on social issues in the state.
He was opposed to handi ng out noney fromthe governnent.

Representative Kelly MOVED to ADOPT Conceptual Anmendnent #3
- to set the federal rate of poverty at 150 percent for the
bill.

Represent ati ve Nel son OBJECTED.

Representati ve Hawker referred to a section of the bill on
page 5 regarding cost sharing, which would also have to be
changed if Conceptual Anmendnent #3 passes. Representati ve
Kel ly thought whatever needed to be included to make the
bill conformto 150 percent could be done.

Co-Chair Meyer asked how easy it would be to nake the
change. Ms. Clarke said that it would have a | arger inpact
than just reducing the percentage. It would change the
current Denali Kid Care program to 150 percent sooner than
was pl anned. A nunber of children would |ose coverage
i nedi at el y. Representative Kelly said that was not his
i ntent. Co- Chair Meyer suggested the Representative Kelly
come up with an anmendnent by tonorrow.

Representative Gara suggested raising the percentage to 200
in a pending anendnent .

Co- Chair Meyer suggested saving both amendnents for the
floor. Representative Kelly agreed.

2:58:48 PM

Co-Chair Chenault asked if a famly of four at 175 percent
poverty | evel nakes about $47,000 a year. Ms. O arke said
150 percent for a famly of four would be $38,730; 200

percent would be $51, 640. Co- Chair Chenault asked for
underlying factors why sone famlies would need this
i nsurance support. He wondered if the nunbers were too
hi gh.

Ms. Clarke said SCHIP is a relatively new program so many
of the changes have not been denonstrated yet. She brought
up the expense of health care in Al aska. There is a
provision in federal |aw prohibiting eligibility for Denali
Kid Care for a period of tine. Co-Chair Chenault gave an
exanple of a famly that would opt out of insurance to go on
Denali Kid Care. Ms. Clarke said if the insurance is

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 05/11/07 2:18 P. M



avai l able by their enployer, they do not qualify. Co-Chair
Chenault asked how many children in Alaska require state
assistance. M. O arke thought about 50 percent.

3:04: 00 PM

M. Oberneyer pointed out that the 2007 poverty guidelines
for Al aska show 175 percent of a famly’'s incone, not total
i ncone. For a famly of four, $41,300 is 200 percent of
their actual inconme. M. Carke added that Denali Kid Care
does not cover the parents.

Representative Gara explained what is covered under the
kid s wuniversal health care provision in his bill. He
shared statistics that half of enployers in Al aska do not
provi de insurance. He gave an exanple why this coverage is
needed. Half of the kids w thout insurance have parents who
wor K.

3: 06: 59 PM

Representative Kelly spoke of lack of faith in the system
regardi ng defined benefits. He spoke agai nst adding nore
into the welfare system— to entitlenents.

Representative Kelly W THDREW Concept ual Anendnent #3.

Vice Chair Stoltze related a personal story supporting
famlies taking care of their own.

3:09:32 PM

Co-Chair Chenault MOVED to REPORT CSSB 27 (FIN am as
amended, from commttee with individual recommendations and
t he acconpanying fiscal notes. There being NO OBJECTIQN, it
was so ordered.

HCS CSSB 27 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Commttee with a "do
pass" recommendation and with zero fiscal note #5 by the
Department of Corrections, and fiscal notes #6, #7, and #8
by the Departnment of Health and Social Services.

ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 3:12 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 05/11/07 2:18 P. M



